ALBANY WATER BOARD
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
June 24, 2016

A regular meeting of the Albany Water Board was officially convened at 9:30 AM, local time, in
the Conference Room at the Albany Water Board, 10 North Enterprise Drive, Albany, New York
Friday, June 24, 2016.

PRESENT: David McGuire, Chairman; William Clay, Vice Chairman; Daniel Ranellone, Treasurer;
Charles Houghton, Secretary; Rachel Johnson, Member.

STAFF PRESENT: Joseph E. Coffey, Jr. PE, Commissioner, AWB; William Simcoe, P.E., Deputy
Commissioner; Christopher Quirk, Chief Fiscal Officer, AWB; Elizabeth Romand,
Confidential Assistant; Andrea Scheely, Customer Service Supervisor;

BOARD ADVISORS PRESENT: William Kahn, UHY Advisors; Paul Goytes, SAX-BST; Kevin Hogan,
ARCADIS;

Approval of May 26, 2016 Meeting Minutes

Chairman David McGuire introduced the minutes of the May 26, 2016 meeting. With no
objection, the reading of minutes was dispensed and Chairman McGuire called for a motion to
approve the minutes of said meeting. A motion was made by Mr. Ranellone, seconded by Mr.
Houghton, and passed unanimously.

Public Comment Period

No public comments were made.

Water Bill Review Committee

There were four cases heard by the Water Bill Review Committee on June 9, 2016. The case
details and recommendations are attached.

Water Board Policy Reviews

Whistleblower Policy- A proposed Whistleblower Policy (draft attached) was introduced to the
Board for review in May. The Albany Water Board membership requested slight modification
of the language used in the initial draft noting that employees of the Department of Water &
Water Supply should be considered as employees of the Albany Water Board for the purposes
of this Policy. The revised document was presented for adoption. Document attached.

Presentation of the 2015 Albany Municipal Finance Authority Audit Report




Paul Goytes of SAX-BST presented the findings of the 2015 Albany Water Board and Finance
Authority Independent Audit Report to the Board. There were no material findings noted
during this audit period. The draft audit report is attached.

Committee & Staff Reports

Cash Flows and other Combined Financial Information: Christopher Quirk, Chief Fiscal Officer,

submitted a statement of the Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance
Authority’s Cash Flows and other combined Financial Information for the one month period
ending May 31, 2016. The detailed report is attached.

Key Performance Indicators and Critical Numbers Dashboard: Commissioner Coffey presented

the monthly Key Performance Indicators as of the end of May, 2016 (attached).

The Commissioner also provided an update on the status of the Madison Avenue sinkhole
repair and noted that Water Department news and any emergency communications can be
found on Twitter at @Albanywater.

The Commissioner noted preventive maintenance statistics for leak detection and sewer
cleaning. He noted we could do a demo on how we do leak detection using the acoustic
detection equipment.

The Commissioner discussed the proposal form Envision Architects to perform a feasibility
study for work needed at the Alcove farmhouse/office and related facilities.

The Commissioner noted we are proceeding to secure a Safety Consultant in lieu of hiring a
Safety Coordinator due to the inability to recruit candidates for a full time equivalent employee
position.

Deputy Commissioner Simcoe noted we are migrating to cellular reads for our large meter
customers.

Quail Street Gl Project Update: The work on Quail Street is completed with punch list items

remaining.

Alcove Forest Carbon Project: This project has been rekindled; we are now awaiting a draft

contract from the Nature Conservancy for review to proceed.

Summer Sewer Lining Projects: The Commissioner will be sending a note out to Board

Members detailing the locations of sewer lining projects planned in our 2016 Sewer Lining
Contract that is going out to bid.



Consultant Engineer’s Report: Kevin Hogan of ARCADIS submitted the Consultant Engineer’s

Report to the Board. The report details progress on upcoming LTCP Projects and ARCADIS
Projects (attached). All action items are occurring within scheduled time frames and
progressing as expected.

Resolutions

Resolution 16-19: Adopting the Whistleblower Policy for the Albany Water Board was offered
by Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr. Ranellone. Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-23: Designating the Albany Water Board as Lead Agency relating to SEQRA for
the Upper Washington Avenue Wastewater project was offered by Chairman McGuire and
seconded by Mr. Ranellone. Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-24: Adopting the SEQRA Finding of No Significant Impact for the North Swan
Street Sewer Project was offered by Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr. Houghton.
Resolution Passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-25: Adopting SEQRA finding of No Significant Impact for the Upper Washington
Avenue Wastewater project was offered by Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr. Houghton.
Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-26: Accepting 2015 Financial Statements and Independent Audit Report was
offered by Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr. Houghton. Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-27: Authorizing Agreement with Denise Delaney as Safety Consultant to the
Department of Water & Water Supply at an hourly rate of $50 for a period of one year with
option for two additional one year extensions. Agreement is in accordance with RFP for Safety
Consultant Services dated June 2016 was offered by Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr.
Houghton. Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-28: Authorizing issuance of Task Order #1 to Master Services Agreement with
Envision Architects for an estimated fee of $35,000 for conducting a feasibility study for
building improvements at multiple Albany Water Board facilities at the Alcove Reservoir.

Resolution 16-29: Authorizing the Chairman to execute “no cost” contract amendments to
Master Services Agreements with CHA Consulting, Inc.; ARCADIS, USA Inc.; Barton & Loguidice
DPC; and the Albany Pool Joint Venture Team for incorporation of EFC Contract language for
those projects that the AWB has received EFC financing Chairman McGuire and seconded by
Mr. Houghton. Resolution passed unanimously.



Resolution 16-30: Authorizing Quarterly payment to Hugh Johnson Financial Advisors in the
amount of $2,468.75 was offered by Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr. Houghton.
Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-31: Authorizing approval of Change Order #3 to contract with Ganem
Contracting Corp for Feura Bush Filtration Plant Masonry Repairs and Roofing Chairman
McGuire and seconded by Mr. Houghton. Resolution passed unanimously.

Resolution 16-32: Adopting the Official Excavation Policy of the Department of Water & Water
Supply Chairman McGuire and seconded by Mr. Houghton. Resolution passed unanimously.

Executive Session

No Executive Session took place.

Chairman Dave McGuire informed all those in attendance that the next regular meeting of the
AWB will be Friday July 22, 2016 at 9:30 a.m. in the AWB Conference Room.

Being no further business, Chairman McGuire called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. A
motion was made by Mr. Ranellone, seconded by Mr. Houghton and passed unanimously. The
meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m.

Approved by: Q MAQ V\B\V\VC LS\

Charles Houghton, Secretary
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Members of the Boards

Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal
Water Finance Authority

Albany, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of.the Albany Water Board and the
Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority, a component unit of the Eity of Albany, New York, which
comprise the combined statements of net position as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and {hé related
combined statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net ‘position, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatlon of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maiatenance of internal gohtrol relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of combined financial statemants that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express &n Gpinion on these c@mbuned financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits i accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the staridards applucable to financiat audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptreller General of the United States Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits ta ébtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are
free from material migstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairi-audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessmient of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entltys preparation and fair presentatlon of the combined financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropnate in the,circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
mcludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accountlng estlmates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

We believe _j(hét the aydit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opifidn.



Members of the Boards

Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal
Water Finance Authority

Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the combined financial position of the Albany Water Board and the Albany Munlmpal Water Finance
thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally égeepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matter

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented ¢ stipplement the basic combined financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic combined finargial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be’an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic combined financial statements in‘an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures {o the feéquired supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in-ihe United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparirighe information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our mqumes the basic combined financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of itie basic combined financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 16 express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by" éét‘Iernment Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated , 2016,
on our consideration 8f the Albany Water Board's and the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authorutys
internal control over fmancual reporting and our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agresiments, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of interndl control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Albany Watef l.ard s and the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority’s internal control
over financial reporting and comphance

Albany, New York
, 2016




Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015 and 2014

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Albany Water Board (AWB) and the
Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority (AMWFA) (collectively the System), a cémiponent unit of the
City of Albany (City) present a brief narrative of the System's financial performante for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014. Management has prepared the combined finapéial statements and related
combined footnote disclosures, along with this MD&A. This information should be read in conjunction
with the combined financial statements and accompanying notes. :

Two five-member Boards govern the AWB and the AMWFA. The éo’“ards have adopted_- ,pélicies and
procedures as required under the Public Authorities Accountability Act (‘PAAA”) of 2005 and the Public
Authorities Reform Act (“PARA") of 2009, enhancing transparency and embracing best govemance
practices.

The AWB Finance Committee meets on a quarterly basis to provide enﬁﬁgced project and transactional
analysis. On a monthly basis, the AWB meets to discuss infrastructure needs, project activity, and
progress. The AWB meets monthly, and the AMWFA meets quarterly to discuss financial position. [n
addition, the AWB Audit Committee and the AMWFA Board meet with the independent auditors to
discuss relevant issues and concerns. :

In summary, positive operational and fmanc&ai'resu'lt"s ‘were achieved during each of the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014. The System, w.rkung together with the City, realized strong revenues,
generally controlled the growth of expenses, and recorded positive cash flow.

Required Financial Statements: THé combined fmanmal ‘statements of the System are prepared under
accounting principles general!y accepterd in the Umt States of America (U.S. GAAP) and contain three
statements that providé information on the System’s _|nancual position and results of operations as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014i A description of these combined statements
follows:

« The combined Statemefits of net positian iftlude all assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources and provide “irformation about the nature and amounts of investments in resources
(as8ets); the obligations:to creditors (liabilities), and the sales of future revenues (deferred inflows
of-résourcés). The combined statements of net position present the financial position of the
System at'Degember 31,2015 and 2014, at the end of its fiscal years.

« The combined statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position report all of the
years' revenues dnd expenses and results of operations.

e The combined statements of cash flows provide information about cash receipts and cash
payments dunng the two reporting periods. The combined statements report cash receipts, cash
payments, and net changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operating, capital,
flnancmg, and investing activities.

Page 3



Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015 and 2014

The following comparative condensed financial statements (amounts in millions) and other selected
information provide key financial data and indicators for management, monitoring, and planning.

Percentage y { Percentage
Change . ! Change
2015 2014 2015-2014.. - .~ 2013 2014-2013
NET OPERATING REVENUES S 38.6 $ 38.2 Ei 3 35.3 82
OPERATING EXPENSES £
Operation and maintenance of waler system 9.6 100 _° < (40 100 -
Operation and maintenance of sewer system 9.2 9. 348 (1.1) 89 4.5
Depreciation expense 3.1 2" (3.1) . ™ 31 32
Administration and genera! 4.5 4.6 22y 4.9 (6.1)
Total operating expenses 26.4 27.1 " L ' 28) 26.9 07
Operating income 12.2 1.1 9.9 8.4 321
Non-operating items il (1 S) (1.5) 67 (1.9) 21.1)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 51 0.6 ¥ ‘9.6 104 6.5 47.7
k L T
NET POSITION, beginning of year 24.3 . 14.8 8.1
NET POSITION, end of year $ 349 - S < :24.3 S 14.6

Operating Revenues: Operatmg revenues for 2015 mcreased by approximately $362,000 (or by 1%), due
to an increase in water usage Operatmg revenues for 2014 increased by approximately $2,901,000 (or
by 8.2%), also due.to an increase in Water usage. Operating revenues exceeded budgeted revenues in
each year. In September 2012, the System rate structure was increased by approximately 4% for
substantially all users.

Qperating Expenses: Operatlng expenses for 2015 decreased by approximately $650,000 (or by 2.6%).
Increased costs in several areas. of the System’s operations were offset to a large extent by a decrease in
bad debt {administrative and general) expense. On the water side, total costs approximated $9,654,000,
slightly less than costs incurred in 2014, principally due to lower payroll and payroll related costs. On the
sewer side, total costs approximated $9,147,000, approximately $162,000 in excess of similar costs in 2014.
Decreases in payroll, payroll related costs, and outside consultants were offset by increased costs
associated with the County Sewer Contract, the System's largest line item cost at approximately
$6,141,000, which increased by approximately $226,000 (or about 3.8%).

Operating expenses for 201 4 increased by approximately $138,000 (or less than 1%). On the water side,
total cosfs approxumated $9 973,000, slightly less than costs incurred in 2013. On the sewer side, total
costs approximated $9,309,000, approximately $395,000 in excess of similar costs in 2013. Sewer
services, principally reflecting sewer repairs and maintenance, exceeded the prior year by approximately
$295,000. Costs associated with the County Sewer Contract, the System's largest line item cost at
approximately $5,915,000, increased by approximately $32,000 (or less than 1%). Other system
operating expenses, including administration and general, also increased due to enhanced security
requirements and increases to payroll related costs.

Other Revenue and Expense ltems: Interest expense declined by approximately $88,000 in 2015 and
$263,000in 2014 as the System began amortizing its 2011A revenue bonds.

Page 4



Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Percentage Percentage
Change Change
2015 2014 2015-2014 2013 2014-2013

Current and restricted assets $ 48.2 3 42.0 14.8 $= 87.0 135
Capital assets, net 32.8 32.9 (0.3) 334 (1.5)

Total assets 81.0 74.9 81 70.4 b, 6.4
Current liabilities 8.0 7.6 5.3 8.0 (5.0)
Noncurrent liabilities 37.8 42.7 . {11.5) 47.3 (9.7)

Total liabilities 45.8 50.3 (8.9) 55.3 {9.0)
Deferred inflows 0.3 0.4 (250 0.5 (20.0)
Net position e T

Net investment in capital assets (4.6) (9.3) {50:5) (12.8) (27.3)

Other - - o 0.4 (100.0)

Unrestricted 39.5 _33.5 179 . - 27.0 24.1

Total net position $ 34.9 % 24.2 f$_ 3 14.6 65.8

Assets: Capital assets decreased from December 31, 2013 to Deeember 31, 2014 by approximately
$429,000 and from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2015, by approx1mately $194,000 as depreciation
expense was greater than capital asset additions in each year. Capital additions to the System
approximated $2.9 million and $2.8 million during 2015 and 2014, respectively. Cash and investments
increased from 2013 to 2014 and from 2014 to 2015 by approximately $3.5 million and $5.5 million,
respectively, as a result of positive cash flow.

Liabilities: During Jung 2011, the System took advantage of the low interest rate environment, and
issued $52,120,000 of Revenue Bonds for the purpase of providing the System with the funds required to
refund its then outstandung (h|gher interest rate) Revenue Bonds and to fund certain reserve accounts.
As a resilt iof payments during 2015 and 2014, the System's total bond debt declined by
approxumately $4355 000 and $4,210,000, respectively. During 2016 (and in each of the next five
years) an additional $4 420,000 to $3,255,000 is scheduled to be paid in debt reduction payments.

Debt Coverage Ratio: “Under the Bond Resolution, the System is required to maintain rates such that, in
each year, revenues (net gf operating expenses) are at least 115% of total annual debt service. The
System was in compliance With the required ratio during 2015 and 2014.

LookmgAhead The System is focused on managing a balanced budget for 2016, continuing to improve
the water and sewer infrastructure, controlling operating expenses, and minimizing the impact of
future systern rate structure changes on City residents. In 2011, the System began allocating $2 million
annually to furd & reserve for major unbudgeted capital projects - while still committing over $3 million
annually to fund turrent capital projects. To this end, over the past 25 years, the System has expended over
$75 million to fund capital projects. The System continues to seek potential water sales to other
municipalities and new commercial customers. All of these actions, along with a commitment to maintain
an adequate security environment, position the System to continue an increasing investment in needed
infrastructure capital expenditures in future years. Working in concert with the City, the System
remains committed to its primary mission: to ensure system users have access to a clean, safe,
plentiful, and low cost water supply for many generations.
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Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015 and 2014

The challenges for the future are many: budgetary pressures, an aging infrastructure, the requirement of
funding over $50 million in the Hudson River Combined Sewer Overflow Project, and the County sewer
contract. Looking ahead, the System remains in a strong financial and operatlng position with the
leadership team and financial resources to appropriately address these challenges inthe years ahead.

Questions about this report may be directed to the System at 518-434- 53@0 or at 10 N@ﬁh Enterprise
Drive, Albany, New York 12204,
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Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Combined Statements of Net Position

December 31,

2015 2014
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68978777 $ 11,144,572
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 955,742 748,361
Investments 14,507,753 5,006,999
Investments, restricted 4,454,863 4,458,691
Receivables, net 10,676,631 10,362,029
Due from City 9,636,233 9,276,571
Prepaid expenses 993,763 1,011,018
Total current assets 48,203,762 42,008,241
CAPITAL ASSETS, AT COST, NET OF ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION 32,791,141 32,985,265
Total assets 80,994,903 74,993,506
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,062,667 1,031,021
Revenue bonds payable, current installments 4,505,000 4,325,000
Accrued expenses 2,427,755 2,356,456
Total current liabilities 7,995,422 7,712,477
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Reven’ﬁ“gbﬁﬁds payable, less current installments 33,050,000 37,585,000
Pfemium onrevenue bonds, net 4,787,017 5,060,561
Total long-term liabilities 37,837,017 42,645,561
Total liabilities 45,832,439 50,358,038
DEFEBRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Sales of future revenues 284,384 384,384
COMMITMEN]TS AND CONTINGENCIES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (4,631,706) (9,269,318)
Unrestricted 39,509,786 33,520,402
Total net position $ 34,878,080 $ 24,251,084

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

NET OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operation and maintenance of water system
Water supply, power and pumping
Water purification
Water transmission and distribution
Taxes paid to municipalities

Operation and maintenance of sewer system
Sewer services
Albany County sewer contract
Sewer pumping stations

Depreciation

Administration and general
Total operating expenses

Operating income

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense
Gain on sale of assets
Interest income
Realized loss on sale of investments
Unrealized loss on investments

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, beginning of year

NET POSITION, end of year

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014
$ 88,577,580 $ 38,215,354
1,002,029 1,184,642
2,274,515 2,380,014
4,454,778 4,438,768
1,922,748 1,969,305
2,640,339 2,846,284
6,141,315 5,914,930
365,630 548,056
3,141,019 3,205,005
4,452,611 4,560,623
26,394,984 27,047,627
12,182,596 11,167,727
(1,814,467) (1,902,486)
15,435 150,425
260,992 232,255
(4,787) .
(12,773) (10,720)
(1,555,600) (1,530,526)
10,626,996 9,637,201
24,251,084 14,613,883
34,878,080 $ 24,251,084
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Albany Water Board and

Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Combined Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

e

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATEB
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net proceeds from sales of capital assets
Payments to City of Albany and other Government Agencies
Principal payments on bonds and notes
Interest expense

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest earned on investments

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIJV-'ALENTS end of year

RECGNCILIAT]@N OF OPEHATING INCOME TO NET CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS PRGVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating incomé
Adjustments to reconcﬂe operating income to net cash and cash
equivalents providedi(used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in
Receuvables net
F’repald expenses and deposits

Total adjustments

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014
§ 41306,186  $ 38082127
- (26,328,024) (25,152,448)
- 14,978,162 12,929,679
(2,946,895) (2,775,940)
15,435 150,425
(359,662) (649,186)
(4,355,000) (4,210,000)
(2,036,960) (2,164,821)
(9,683,082) (9,649,522)
(10,273,592) (4,779,780)
759,106 (10,720)
260,992 232,255
(9,253,494) (4,558,245)
(3,958,414) (1,278,088)
11,892,933 13,171,021
$ 7,934,519 $ 11,892,933
$ 12,182,596 $ 11,167,727
3,141,019 3,205,005
(314,602) (828,887)
17,255 (14,609)
(48,106) (599,557)
2,795,566 1,761,952
$ 14,978,162 $ 12,929,679
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Albany Water and Sewer System (System) provides water s_ug_;_ﬁly and distribution, and
the collection and disposal of sewage, principally for the City of Albaﬁjii (City) The System, as
consists of two legally separate, but interdependent, entities: Albany Water éaérd (Board) and
Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority (Authority). The System is a component reporting unit of
the City and, as such, is included in the City’s general-purpose fihancial statements.

The Board, a corporate municipal instrumentality, was €stablished in 1986 with the power o set
and collect water and sewer fees in amounts sufficigfit to pay the debt service on the bonds of the
Authority, as well as to provide for the costs of the 6pgration and maintenance of the System. The
primary responsibility of the Board is to charge, collect, and:enforée rates and other charges for the
System. The Board consists of five members who are appeinted by the Mayor of the City.

and collect sufflcuent rates to pay the co_g_ts +of Operatmg and funancung the System. The Authority
consists of seven members, two membér§ of whom are appointed by the Governor of New York
State and five members of whom are appointéd by the Mayor of the City.

The Board is a party t6 an operation agreemerit with the City whereby the City provides the Board
with management, operational, and administrative personnel, and certain services, supplies, and
equipment for the operation and mamtenance of the System. Direct costs under this agreement,
including substantially all operatuon mamtenance payroll, and payroll related costs, are charged to
the Board (by the City) as incurred. Geriain indirect costs, including certain legal services and
accounting and ghgineering support, are charged to the Board (by the City) on an annual basis.
Other indirect costs have been assumed by the City in lieu of the City paying water and sewer
charges. Revenues and expenses relating to the City's use of the System, which have not been
quantlﬁed and recorded ln the combined financial statements, are not believed to be significant

The City, Board, amd Authority are parties to a financing agreement which authorized the issuance
of bonds by the Authority to finance the purchase of the System (from the City). The financing
agreement requires the Board to maintain a rate structure which adequately funds debt service
{Note 10), requires the Board to provide for the monthly transfer of revenues to the Authority for
debt service payments, and stipulates other administrative requirements for the Board, Authority,
and Gity: The financing agreement also requires the Board to prepare an annual budget for the
funding of debt service costs of the Authority and the operation and maintenance costs of the
System.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
b. Basis of Accounting and Presentation of Financial Statements

The accompanying combined financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (UJ.8; GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Bgérd (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accountrng andaflnanmal reportmg prrncrples

Activities of both the Board and the Authority are accounted fer srmrlar to those often fouird in the
private sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of respurces, deferred inflows of resources, net
position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single enterprise fund with revenue
recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the timg liabilities-aré incurred.

The Board and Authority, as fiscally interdependent entitigs, are combined for financial reporting
purposes. Additionally, both the Boa&i and the Authority dfe included in the City’'s financial
statements as a component reporting uhit {an enterprise fund) ot the City.

The principal revenues of the Board and Autharrty include all water arid sewer user charges billed
to customers, including penalties relatlng to late payments; service ificome, and connection and
repair charges. The System had approximately 29,000 water -and sewer customer accounts at
December 31, 2015. Approximately 80% of the customer base is comprised of residential
customers, substantially All gf which are within the City of Albany. Water services are billed based
on meter readings .or at- flat rate charges; sewer charges are generally billed at 100% of water
charges. Revenues are based on billing rateSzlmposed by the Board, which were last increased in
September 2012. Approximately 20% of operating revenues is derived from the System’'s 50
largest customers which also mc!ude ¢ériain inter-municipality agreements.

c. Bond Resolutions

The Authority has entered into four Water and Sewer System General Revenue Bond Resolutions:
the 1988 General Revenue Bond Resolution, the 2003 Second General Revenue Bond Resolution,
the 2011 Third General Re @nue Bond Resolution, and in 2012, the fourth General Revenue Bond
Resolution. These resolutions provide that the Authority pledge, for the payment of the bonds, all
System revenues, the proceeds-from the sale of bonds, and all monies and securities in any funds
and accounts Addrtronally the Bond Resolutions provide for the assignment and transfer of all of
the Authority's rlghts and interests relative to the collection of revenues and the payment of debt
service to an authorized trustee. Certain restricted funds and accounts (Note 6) have been
established with the trustee to assure the Board's and Authority's compliance with the Bond
Resalutions.

d. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits. Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less when purchased. All cash deposits and repurchase
agreements are fully collateralized or covered by federal deposit insurance.

Investments principally consist of obligations of the United States and its agencies and certificates

of deposit. Investments are carried at fair value based principally on quoted prices in active
markets.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

e. Receivables

Net receivables include all unpaid customer bills for System related sewit_:?:es and also include

estimated amounts earned for unbilled usage which relate to billing cyclgs which-end subsequent to
December 31 of each year. The Board records estimated unbilled revenue basedien historic billing
trends and, when applicable, considers the effect of rate structure ohanges whieh may have been
implemented during the year. In November of each year, substantually all metered delinquent
accounts are transferred to the City and placed on the City's-general property tax rolls. These
accounts are subject to the City's collection procedures (which subsequently provide for full
collection by the County of Albany). Certain unmeteréd resident accounts (which comprise less
City's general property tax rolls. However, these unmetered balances are subject to the Board's
collection procedures.

The Board maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect potentially uncollectible
receivables that may not be subject to thg: City's or County's coflestion procedures. The allowance

for doubtful accounts, which is reflecied as 4 contra-receivable .for financial reporting purposes,
approximated $170,000 and $3,300, 000 at. December 31, 2015 and 2614 reSpectuver

f. Capital Assets
Capital assets, acquired through eithef purchase or construction, are recorded at cost.
Depreciation is computed usmg the straightfine method based upon estimated useful lives as

follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Buildings 20-40 Years
Water supply and waste water treatment systems 5-50 Years
Water distribution and sewage collection systems 5-50 Years

Equupment, furniture, fixtures and vehicles 3-10 Years

Maintenance and fepairs aré charged to current operations.  Major replacements and
improvements, chudlng all costs associated with the Board/Authority capital plan, are capitalized
as capital assets.

g.. 'Net_ Position..

Net position is classified as foliows:

o Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
reduced by the net outstanding debt balances.

o Restricted net position has externally placed constraints on use.
o Unrestricted net position consists of assets and liabilities that do not meet the definition of

“restricted net position” or “net investment in capital assets.”
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
h. Restrictions on Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Certain proceeds from bond issues, including monies set aside for futgr.é' eapital expenditures or
debt reserve purposes, are restricted under various provisions of the bend resgl'ution and financing
agreement. A

= e - 5o
: A !

i. Deferred Inflows of Resources .
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will Sefnetimes report a separate segtion for
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resourges represent unearned revenues that do
not meet both the measurable and available criteriafor recognition inhe current year. The Board
has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferréd sales of future revenues
reported in the combined statement of net position. The deferred sales of future revenues resuits
from an inter-municipality agreement with the Town of Guilderfand which provides for a commitment
to sell water to the Town (Note 10). i

w

j.  Employee Benefit Plans . -

Certain employee benefit plans are provided (by the City) for System employees and reimbursed
(by the Board) under the operation agreement. In this regard, employees earn vacation time credits
as they provide service. Pursuant to collective bargaining agreements, they may accumulate
(subject to certain limitafions) unused time eamed and, upon retirement, termination, or death, may
be compensated for such accumllated time. “In addition, substantially all full-time employees of the
City are members of the New York State Empléyees’ Retirement System, a multi-employer defined
benefit pension plan. Participant ontributions are mandatory for those employed after June 1976.
The majority of participants employed before that date do not contribute. Under the operation
agreement, all efployee benefits are recorded in the combined financial statements at the time
they are billed by the City.

k. lriiééme Taxes

The Board and ﬁuthority a‘r'_é.bdth exempt from federal, state, and local income taxes.
I Estimates and.Assumptions

The preparation of ¢embined financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
agsets and liabiliies- at the date of the combined financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenués and éxpenses during the reporting period. The application of these accounting principles
involves the exercise of judgment and use of assumptions as to future uncertainties and, as a
result, actual results could differ from these estimates. The Board and Authority periodically
evaluate estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the combined financial statements
and make changes on a prospective basis when adjustments are necessary. Significant estimates
made by the Board and Authority in the accompanying combined financial statements include
certain assumptions related to the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Page 13



Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
m. New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The primary objective
of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by staté.and Ideal governments for
pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local govemmental employers about
financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. “This statement, replaces the
requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for E)eﬂned Benefit Pengion. Plans and
Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, PenSIon Disclosures, as they relate to
pension plans that are administered through trusts or equtvalent arrangements (hereafter jointly
referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The reqirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50
remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trusts covered by the scope of
this statement.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Coniributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. This statement addresses an
issue regarding the application of the fransition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates: to Bmounts associated with contributions, if any, made
by a state or local government employer or nom-erfiployer contributing entity to a defined benefit
pension plan after the measurement date of the govemment's beginning net pension liability. The
provisions of the statement are to be adopted simultarieously with Statement No. 68.

The adoption of these standards did not signifiéantlilfimpact the System’s financial statements

n. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the prior year amounts in order to conform to the current
year presentation,

0. Subsequent Evérits
The Board and the Authority have evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition or

disclosure through , 2016, the date the combined financial statements were available
to be issued.

Note 2 - Receivables, Nét

Receivables, net gonsist of the following:

December 31,

2015 2014
Billed $ 4,195219 $ 6,927,185
Unbilled 6,654,977 6,751,617
10,850,196 13,678,802
Allowance for doubtful accounts (173,565) (3,316,773)
Receivables, net $ 10,676,631 $ 10,362,029
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 3 - Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Guidelines issued by the New York State Office of the State Comptroller (BSC) establish the
criteria for permissible investments by the Board and Authority. Additionally, the Board and
Authority have combined investment policies which incorporate provnsuons ef the Bond Resolutions
and the OSC's guidelines. e,

Under these policies, the Board and Authority may invest in obllgattons of the U :S. Government and
its agencies, obligations of the State of New York, certificates-ef deposit (issued byia New York
State commercial bank), and repurchase agreements (which dre collateralized by obligations of the
federal government).

Investments are stated at fair value. Generally, it is the Board's and Authority's policy to purchase
U.S. Government agency obligations with the intent of hoiding them' uritil they mature. All such
obligations are registered and held by the Board’s or Authonty’s gustodian in the Board’s or
Authority’s name.

The December 31, 2015 and 2014 cash, cash equivalents, and investments comprise the following:

December 31, 2015 Cost Market

Non-interest bearing accounts

Cash accounts $ 6,978,777 S 6,978,777
Interest bearing and money market accounts

U.S. Treasury Fund money market 955,742 955,742
7,934,519 7,934,519

Investments in debt securities
U.S. Treasury Notes and Securities 8,769,055 8,757,730
Government Agency Notes 5,158,281 5,253,676
Certificates of Deposit 4,948,461 4,951,210
18,875,797 18,962,616
Total $ 26,810,316 $ 26,897,135

._._":l:b:gcember 31,2014 Cost Market

Non-interest bearing ‘accounts

Cash accounts - $ 11,140,491 $ 11,140,491
interest bearing and money market accounts

U.8. Treasury Fund money market 748,361 748,361
Other 4,081 4,081
11,892,933 11,892,933

Investments in debt securities
U.S. Treasury Notes and Securities 1,627,508 1,630,067
Government Agency Notes 4,101,972 4,201,571
Certificates of Deposit 3,636,618 3,634,052
9,366,098 9,465,690
Total $ 21,259,031 $ 21,358,623
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(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority

Capital assets, including additions, deletions, and related transfers comprise the:following:

December 31,

December 31,

2014 Additions 2015
Water supply, distribution, and s |
collection systems $ 25,726,845 3 ; '$ - $ 25,726,845
Water and sewer system capital
impravements, equipment, furniture
and fixtures, and vehicles 70,900,383 (164,602) 72.254,320
Six Mile Waterworks (Rensselaer Lake)
ground lease 7,210,000 " - 7,210,000
Construction in progress 123,452 ~(676,765) 1,551,808
103,960,680 (841,367) 106,742,973
Less accumulated depreciation (70,975,415) (3,141,6i9) . 164,602 (73,951,832)
Total $ 32985265 $ 4826841  _$» (676,765 S 32,791,141
Decembér 31, December 31,
2013 ; Additidﬁs‘,_ﬂ__:, Deletions 2014
Water supply, distribution, and
collection systems $ 25,726,845 S $ - $§ 25,726,845
Water and sewer systern capital
improvements, gquipment, furniture
and fixtures, and vehicles 68,181,183 3,061,361 (342,161) 70,900,383
Six Mile Waterworks (Rensselaer Lake)
ground lease 7,210,000 - - 7.210,000
Construction in progress 408,872 123,450 (408,870) 123,452
' 101,526,900 3,184,811 (751,031) 103,960,680
lLess accumulated depreciation (68,112,570) (3,205,006) 342,161 (70,975,415)
Total $ 33,414,330 $ (20,195) $ (408,870) $ 32,985,265

In December 2002, the Board and the City entered into a fifty-year ground lease under which the
City conveyed to,the Board a leasehold interest in certain real property, including Six Mile
Waterworks (Rensselaer Lake), an emergency facility. The total cost of this lease, including certain
relatéd financing €osts, was recorded as a capital asset.

Total depréciation expense was $3,141,019 and $3,205,005 for the years ended December 31,

2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority

(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 5 - Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds and notes payable balances and activity for the years ended December-81, 2015 and 2014,
are summarized below: F

! Due
December 31, Decernbsr 31, Within
2014 Additions Reductions. . 2015 One Year
General revenue bonds k-
Series 2011A S 40,180,000 $ - §  4,2a5000 S 35,935,000 $ 4,420,000
EFC revenue bonds
Series 2003-C 45,000 - 45,000 - -
Series 2010-C 85,000 - 15,000 70,000 15,000
Series 2012-B 1,600,000 - 50,000 1,550,000 70,000
Bonds payable 41,910,000 - 4,355,000 37,555,000 $ 4,505,000
Unamortized bond premium 5,060,561 - il 273,5?4»4 4,787,017
Bonds payable, net S 46,970,561 $ - S 4,628,544 S 42,342,017
Due
December 31, December 31 Within
2013 Additions Reductions 2014 One Year
General revenue bonds
Series 2011A S 44 295,000 $ - $ 4415000 S 40,180,000 $ 4245000
EFC revenue bonds
Series 2003-C 90,000 - 45,000 45,000 45,000
Series 2010-C 90,000 - 5,000 85,000 15,000
Series 2012-B 1,645,000 - 45,000 1,600,000 20,000
Bonds payable 46,120,000 - 4,210,000 41,910,000 $ 4,325,000
Unamortized bongd premum 5,334,105 - 273,544 5,060,561
Bonds payable. net .$. 61,454,105 S8 - S 4,483,544 $ 46.970,561
Futuré principal payments required on all outstanding revenue bonds are as follows:
Year Ending ‘ _Series EFC Revenue Bonds
December 31 .. __2011A 2010-C 2012-B Total
2016 $ 4,420,000 3 15,000 $ 70,000 $ 4,505,000
2017 X 3,940,000 15,000 100,000 4,055,000
2018 | 3,220,000 15,000 100,000 3,335,000
2018- g 3,350,000 25,000 100,000 3,475,000
2020 : 3,515,000 - 110,000 3,625,000
2021-2025 9,915,000 - 660,000 10,575,000
2026-2030 4,320,000 - 410,000 4,730,000
2031-2033 3,255,000 - - 3,255,000
Net bonds and
notes payable $ 35,935,000 $ 70,000 $ 1,550,000 $ 37,555,000
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 5 - Bonds and Notes Payable - Continued

Future interest payments required on all outstanding revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Series EFC Revenue Bonds =
December 31 2011A 2010-C 20128 Total
2016 $ 1,757,350 $ 2,184 $ 93,987 $. 1,853,521
2017 1,536,350 1,774 88,484 1,626,608
2018 1,378,750 1,322 82,897 1,462,969
2019 1,217,750 846 77,234 1,295,830
2020 1,050,250 - 71,331 1,121,581
2021-2025 2,916,000 - 249,135 3,165,135
2026-2030 1,487,250 - 43,534 1,530,784
2031-2033 330,500 s Pk - 330,500
Totals $ 11,674 ZQQ;:: $ 6,126 _ i 706,602 $ 12,386,928

Interest expense was $1,814,467 and $1,902,486 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

a. Revenue Bonds
During June 2011, the Auihonty issued $52,120,000 of Series 2011 A Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds fot the purpose of providing the Authority with the funds required to refund (higher
interest rate) all of the previously outstanding 2003 A and Series 2003 B Revenue Bonds.

The Series 2011 A Revenue Bonds comprise both Serial and Term Bonds, with varying rates and
maturities, as follows:

Type o Rate Maturity Total
Serial Bonds/Series A 2.00% to 5.00% 2012 to 2022 $ 42,440,000
Term Bonds/Sefies A 5.00% 2023 to 2033 9,680,000
$ 52,120,000

interest on both the Serial and Term Bonds is payable semi-annually. The Series A Term Bonds
require- sinking fund instaliments, beginning in the year 2023, through the year 2033, of amounts
ranging from $665 000 to $1,135,000, annually. The Term Bonds are callable at the option of the
Authority, in whole or in part, beginning December 2023, at a redemption price of par, plus accrued
interest

Under the financing agreement, the Board granted a security interest and mortgage in the System

to the Authority. The Revenue Bonds are direct obligations of the Authority, secured by a pledge of
revenues and funds established under the Bond Resolutions.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 5 - Bonds and Notes Payable - Continued

b. Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) Revenue Bonds

During 2012, certain previously outstanding pooled borrowing notes were'tefunded and reissued,
resulting in one new EFC pooled borrowing note: 2012 B. This. EEC note requires serial
installments, with an interest rate of approximately 4%. Final maturity dates exténd through 2028.
interest is payable semi-annually. The 2010 C EFC note requires_‘_"S'&tiél installments, with interest
rates ranging from .87% to 3.38% for 2010 C. Final maturity dates extend through'2019. Interest is
payable semi-annually. i

The Authority receives a subsidy credit toward its annual #ebt service cost from, and is charged an
annual administrative fee by, the New York State Environmental Facilities.Corporation.

Note 6 - Restrictions on Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments- )
Substantially all the cash, cash equivalents, and investments-of the Authority are heid by a Trustee

in accordance with the provisions of the Bend Resolutions andfgr the Financing Agreement. A
schedule by fund and account follows: - e

S, December'31;:2015 December 31,
Cash and Cash TR 2014
Equivalenis, Investments§ - - Total Total
Authority Funds
1999 Debt Service Rg__sé;ve Fund {b) $ 25,624 $ 10,982 $ 36,606 $ 36,267
2003 C and 2012-B EFG Debt
Service Reserva Fund (b) 106,726 246,145 352,871 348,376
2011 A Debt Service Reserve Fund (b} 816,766 4,197,736 5,014,502 4,815,570
2011 A Debt Service Fund (a) 4‘;326 - 4,326 3,891
Other Funds ; 9i300 - 2,300 2,948
Total Authority Funils 958,742 4,454,863 5,410,605 5,207,052
Board Funds
Ongoing Projests Account (¢} 2,051,345 14,507,753 16,559,098 11,040,334
Lockbox and Other Accounts 4,927,432 - 4,927,432 5,111,237
Total Board Funds 6,978,777 14,507,753 21,486,530 16,151,571
Total $ 7934519 $ 18,962,616 $ 26,897,135 $ 21,358,623

(a) Debt Service Funds: These accounts, which are held by a Trustee, provide for the monthly
funding of semi-annual debt service payments. The revenues from the Board are utilized to
fund tHese accounts on a priority basis.

(b) Debt Service Reserve Funds: These accounts, which are held by a Trustee, were originally
funded with deposits from the proceeds of various bond issues in amounts approximating the
maximum annual debt service payments. In accordance with the Bond Resolution (or, as
applicable, the SRF note agreements), these funds may only be applied to debt service
payments to the extent other funds are not available.

(c) Ongoing Projects Account: This account provides for the funding of special, non-recurring
capital projects as approved by the Board. The account is currently funded on an annual basis,
pursuant to the Board's budget, in the amount of $2,000,000.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 7 - Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses comprise the following:

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014
Albany County Sewer Contract obligation (Note 10) $ 2,054,102 $ 2,033,854
Accrued interest on Authority bonds 147,921 ' '_ 165,711
Accrued interest rebate (Note 10) 225,732 156,891
Total $ 2427755  $ 2,356,456

Note 8 - Transactions with the City of Albany

Amounts due from/to the City of Albany are as follows:

siEnded December 31,

2014
Due from the City of Albany $ 15,662,996 $ 15,046,101
Due to the City of Albany (6,026,763) (5,769,530)
Due from the City of Albany $ 9,636,233 $ 9,276,571

Pursuant to the operation agreement, the City is entitied to water and sewer services without
charge in exchange for providing the Board with services described in the agreement. Certain
indirect costs, including certain iegal services and accounting and engineering support incurred by
the City, are charged 19 the Board on an annual basis. Indirect costs charged to the Board were
$750,000 during each- of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 9 - Retirement Piai‘l

As noted in Note 1a, the System reimburses the City for all personnel costs, including the costs
associated with the tetirement system. All personnel who perform work for the System are
employees of the Gity. Furthermore, the System does not make a direct contribution to the New
York State Employees Retirement System (ERS) but rather reimburses the City for a portion of
their ERS costs as stlpulated in the management agreement. As the System is considered a non-
employer and does not make direct contributions to the ERS, they are not required to report a net
pension liability or asset, or any related deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of
resources.

The System is a member of the ERS and makes contributions on behalf of two AMWFA Board

members who are eligible for compensation under New York State regulations. These
contributions, and any resulting net pension liability, are immaterial to these financial statements.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Aibany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies
a. Litigation

The System is a party to various legal actions normally associated with. water and sewer utility
operations, the aggregate effect of which is not expected to be matenal £ o) the future financial
condition of the System.

b. Sales of Future Revenue

During 1998, the Board entered into an inter-municipality agreement with the Town of Guiilderiand
which provides for a commitment to sell water to the Town through the year 2018. Under the
agreement, the Town advanced the Board $2.3 million; of which $2.0 million was provided to induce
the Board to enter into the agreement providing for the sale of water.at below market rates over a
20-year period. The Board has recorded these funds as deferred inflows of resources, which is
being amortized into revenue on the straight-line basis oyver the 20-year term of the agreement.

c. Rebate on Interest Earnings

In accordance with the Tax Reform Agt af 1986; the Board and Authority are required to rebate to
the Federal government the net interest garned on certain restricted funds under the bond issues,
in excess of the interest expense on the bonds Flebate calculations have been completed and
rebate obligations have been identified in the amount of $225,732 and $156,891 as of December
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are inclided in accrued expenses on the combined
statements of net position. - -Any change to the tebate amount is included within interest expense on
the combined statem&nts-6f reveénues, expenses, ,.and changes in net position. Amounts charged to
interest for rebate revenue were $68,841 and $30,521 during 2015 and 2014, respectively. Any
future amounts 1o be rebated are not expected to be material in relation to the System'’s investment
income.

d. Albany County Sewer Confract

The Gity, along with eertaln other municipalities, entered into an agreement with the Albany County
Sewer E)fstnct (the Dlstnct) which was subsequently assumed by the Board. The District maintains
and operates the County sewer system and waste treatment plants. Under the agreement, the
District bills the Board its share of the debt service on County sewer obligations and related
operating expenses.. The Board is liable for its allocable share of debt service whether or not the
City's sewer systemn remains connected to the County system.

&, Rate Covenants

Under:the Bond/Resolution (Note 1), the Board has agreed to establish rates sufficient in each year
SO that budgeted revenues are at least equal to 115% of the sum of budgeted annual aggregate
debt serv;ee and System operating expenses. The Board has also agreed that operating revenues
collected fgr each fiscal year be at least equal to 100% of operating and Authority expenses and
100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for debt service reserve and other
funds from revenue sources.

For the 2015 year, the minimum debt coverage ratio was reached. For the 2015 year, operating
revenues collected were at least 100% of operating and authority expenses. For the 2015 year,
operating revenues collected were at least 100% of required deposits made to the Debt Service
Reserve Fund.
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Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
(A Component Unit of the City of Albany, New York)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Note 11 - Other Matters

The City of Albany, by the Albany Water Board, entered into a Memorandum ef Agreement (the
Agreement) with various communities in June 2013. The Agreement i in support of the
communities anticipated entry into an order of consent with the New Y@rk State Department of
Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) to resolve claims made by NYS_. The claims relate to
alleged violations by the communities of requirements under the Federat Clean Water Act and the
communities individual state Pollutant Dlscharge Elimination System permits gaverming combined
sewer overflows. The order of consent requires the communities to enter into an ater-Municipal
Agreement to facilitate the implementation of the Albany Peol Combined Sewer Overflow Long-
Term Control Pian.

In January 2014, another Memorandum of Agreement was signed between the Albany Water Board
and the Capital District Regional Pilanning Commission. The Adreement summarizes cost
allocations, project implementation, and a resolution for injtial fuading support. The communities
agreed to create a not-for-profit corporation to carry out ail actions necessary and appropriate for
implementation of the combined sewer overflow Long-Terh Gontrol Pian in accordance with the
inter-Municipal Agreement. The total estimated project costs for legal support associated with
creating a 501(c)(3) (operation bond counsel and financial advisors) amounted to $1,000,000. The
Albany Water Board was aliocated to pay 58% of the total estimated costs, or $586,800, which was
paid in March 2014. Total construction costs are estimated to be $90,820,000, of which 58.68%
($53,000,000) are the Albany Water Board's and Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority's
responsibility.

The Authority currently expects to fund its portion of allocable construction costs through the
issuance of bonds. Qosts expected to be incurred through 2017 approxumate $6.8 million. In
February 2015, .the Authority authorized the issuance of Series 2015-A bonds in the amount of
$7 million to fund such costs.

Note 12 - Accounting Standards ISsued But Not Yet Implemented

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB 72). GASB 72 defines
falr value and describes how fair value should be measured, what assets and liabilities should be
measured at fair value, and what information should be disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. The provisions of GASB 72 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions GASB 75 establishes financial reporting standards for other postemployment
beneflts (“OPEB") plans for state and local governments. This standard replaces the requirements
of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemp/oyment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended. The statement establishes standards for recognizing
and meas'hnﬁg fHiabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and expense/expenditures as
prolected*taeneflt payments, to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to
periods of employee service. Additionally, GASB 75 lays out requirements for additional note
disclosures and required supplementary information. These requirements are effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2017.

Management has not estimated the extent of the potential impact, if any, of these statements on the
System'’s financial statements.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Members of the Boards

Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal
Water Finance Authority

Albany, New York

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally -accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the combined statement of net positien of the
Albany Water Board and the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority (a component reporting unit of the
City of Albany), as of December 31, 2015, and the related combined statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
combined financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated , 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered the Albany
Water Board's and Albany Municipal Water Finange Authority's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressmg our opinions on the cembined financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's and Authority's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's and Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal ¢dntrol -exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employgés, in the nofmal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect -and correct, misstatements an a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of defigiencies, in internal ¢ontdl; such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statement& will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficieney is a deficiericy, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our conhsideration of internal contral was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Members of the Boards

Albany Water Board and Albany Municipal
Water Finance Authority

Page 24

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Albany Water Board's and the Albany
Municipal Water Finance Authority's combined financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters, including Investment Guidelines for Public Atthotities and the Albany
Water Board's and the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority’s  Investment Guidelines,
noncompliance which could have a direct and material effect on the detetmination of eombined financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisigng.was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reparted under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion -on the effectiveness of the Board's and
Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board's and Authority’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Albany, New York
, 2016



MEMORANDUM

To: Vice Chairman David R. McGuire
From: Gerald E. Campbeli

Date:  Junc 9", 2016

Re: Water Bill Review Hearing

Pursuant to City Ordinance 19.31.98, the Water Bill Review Committee has reviewed the following cases
on June 9*, 2016 and has made the following recommendation(s) for consideration by the Water Board.

A Foss Ave — CQwrent B(0.0%
Mr. Paul Miller 4 foss Ave ~ Curcant 2G0.25 FR“'”\QUQ “'S\-’Sﬁﬁﬂa

S M Qecounts
, 4, 6 Foss Avenue
Albany, Ny 12205 s Fossive — Qurrant Rls0.85
RE: 2,4,6 Foss Avenue
The Water Bill Review Committee recommends the accounts be suspended.
— #0922 - Corrent RN i 4GNSk
425 Kenwood Avenue Rﬁc‘-\'\"j 330 . 3% Rarmve
Delmar, NY 12054 +%uspaﬂd

027573 - Comant B SURIS. & /g Lo
Penald LN (@

The Water Bill Review Committee recommends the accounts be suspended.

RE: 40 Karner Road

ce:  Commissioner Joseph Coffey
Andrea Scheely



Protest
2,4, & 6 Foss Ave
Accounts: 031943, 031945, 031947 Route: Vacant Lots
Paul Miller

Customer is protesting the yearly vacant lot fees in the amount of $60.25,
$60.25 & $72.30

AWD received a letter from Mr. Miller stating they were undevelopable.
There are currently only being billed for sewer.

Overview of June 9", 2016 meeting:

To remove and suspend accounts. AWD has gone to property and found
there are no service lines there.



Protest
40 Karner Rd
Accounts: 031932 & 027573 Route: Vacant Lots
The Mohawk Hudson Land Conservancy, Inc.

Customer is protesting the yearly vacant lot fees in the amount of $4,617.56
& $4,815.18

The customer contacted AWD and explained that they had just purchased
from the county in January 2016. They are in a land trust arrangement (no
development). They would like the accounts suspended.

Overview of June 9", 2016 meeting:

To remove billing and suspend accounts due a land trust agreement (no
development) in their deed.






Albany Water Board
Whistleblower Policy and Procedures

Purpose

It is the policy of the Albany Water Board to afford certain protections to individuals who in good faith
report violations of the Water Board’s Code of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing within
the Water Board. The Whistleblower Policy and Procedures set forth below are intended to encourage
and enable employees to raise concerns in good faith within the Water Board and without fear of
retaliation or adverse employment action.

Definitions

“Good Faith”: Information concerning potential wrongdoing is disclosed in “good faith” when the
individual making the disclosure reasonably believes such information to be true and reasonably
believes that it constitutes potential wrongdoing.

“Water Board Employee”: All board members, and officers and staff employed at the Albany Water
Board whether full-time, part-time, employed pursuant to contract, employees on probation and
temporary employees. The category “Water Board Employee” includes all employees of the City of
Albany Department of Water & Water Supply.

“Whistleblower”: Any Water Board Employee (as defined herein) who in good faith discloses
information concerning wrongdoing by another Water Board employee, or concerning the business of
the Water Board itself.

“Wrongdoing”: Any alleged corruption, fraud, criminal or unethical activity, misconduct, waste, conflict
of interest, intentional reporting of false or misleading information, or abuse of authority engaged in by
a Water Board Employee (as defined herein) that relates to the Water Board.

“Personnel action”: Any action affecting compensation, appointment, promotion, transfer, assignment,
reassignment, reinstatement or evaluation of performance.

Section 1: Reporting Wrongdoing

All Water Board Employees who discover or have knowledge of potential wrongdoing concerning board
members, officers, or employees of this Water Board (as defined herein); or a person having business
dealings with this Water Board; or concerning the Water Board itself, shall report such activity in
accordance with the following procedures:



a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

The Water Board Employee shall disclose any information concerning wrongdoing either
orally or in a written report to his or her supervisor, or to the Water Board'’s ethics officer
(City of Albany Corporation Counsel), or human resources representative (Confidential
Assistant to the Commissioner of the Department of Water & Water Supply).

All Water Board Employees who discover or have knowledge of wrongdoing shall report
such wrongdoing in a prompt and timely manner.

The identity of the whistleblower and the substance of his or her allegations will be kept
confidential to the best extent possible.

The individual to whom the potential wrongdoing is reported shall investigate and handle
the claim in a timely and reasonable manner, which may include referring such information
to the Authorities Budget Office or an appropriate law enforcement agency where
applicable.

Should a Water Board Employee believe in good faith that disclosing information within the
Water Board pursuant to Section 1 (a) above would likely subject him or her to adverse
personnel action or be wholly ineffective, the Water Board Employee may instead disclose
the information to the Authorities Budget Office or an appropriate law enforcement agency,
if applicable. The Authorities Budget Office’s toll free number (1-800-560-1770) should be
used in such circumstances.

Section II: No Retaliation or Interference

No Water Board Employee shall retaliate against any whistleblower for the disclosure of potential
wrongdoing, whether through threat, coercion, or abuse of authority; and, no Water Board Employee
shall interfere with the right of any other Water Board Employee by any improper means aimed at
deterring disclosure of potential wrongdoing. Any attempts at retaliation or interference are strictly
prohibited and:

a)

b)

c)

No Water Board Employee who in good faith discloses potential violations of the Water
Board’s Code of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing, shall suffer harassment,
retaliation or adverse personnel action.

All allegations of retaliation against a Whistleblower or interference with an individual
seeking to disclose potential wrongdoing will be thoroughly investigated by this Water
Board.

Any Water Board Employee who retaliates against or had attempted to interfere with any
individual for having in good faith disclosed potential violations of this Water Board’s Code



of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing is subject to discipline, which may
include termination of employment.

d) Any allegation of retaliation or interference will be taken and treated seriously and
irrespective of the outcome of the initial complaint, will be treated as a separate matter.

Section III: Other Legal Rights Not Impaired

The Whistleblower Policy and Procedures set forth herein are not intended to limit, diminish or impair
any other rights or remedies that an individual may have under the law with respect to disclosing
potential wrongdoing free from retaliation or adverse personnel action.

a) Specifically, these Whistleblower Policy and Procedures are not intended to limit any rights
or remedies that an individual may have under the laws of the State of New York, including
but not limited to the following provisions: Civil Service Law § 75-b, Labor Law § 740, State
Finance Law § 191 (commonly known as the “False Claims
Act”), and Executive Law § 55(1).

b) With respect to any rights or remedies that an individual may have pursuant to Civil Service
Law § 75-b or Labor Law § 740, any employee who wishes to preserve such rights shall prior
to disclosing information to a government body, have made a good faith effort to provide
the appointing authority or his or her designee the information to be disclosed and shall
provide the appointing authority or designee a reasonable time to take appropriate action
unless there is imminent and serious danger to public health or safety. (See Civil Service
Law § 75-b[2][b]; Labor Law § 740[3]).

Adopted by the Albany Water Board as of:

Resolution:
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ALBANY WATER BOARD

ALBANY MUNICIPAL WATER AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES

May 31, 2016

YEAR-TO-DATE MAY 2016

2016 ANNUAL ADJUSTED (OVER)/ 2015 YTD
ADJUSTED BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER ACTUAL
Administration
Personnel services 1,152,736 $ 478,494 391,538 $ 86,956 325,167
Equipment 1,000 $ - - 0 975
Contractual and other expenses 193,148 § 69,688 74,359 (4,671) 65,283
Benefits 390,398 $ 162,666 132,312 30,354 132,110
1,737,282 710,848 598,209 112,639 523,535
Supply, Power and Pumping
Personnel services 803,481 $ 333,520 274,497 59,023 282,057
Equipment 43,000 $ 17,917 745 17,172 -
Contractual and other expenses 104,913 $ 37,853 14,835 23,018 36,005
Benefits 358,894 $ 149,539 91,891 57,648 84,319
1,310,288 538,829 381,968 156,861 402,381
Purification
Personnel services 1,139,326 § 472,928 409,246 63,682 453,613
Equipment 190,000 3 79,167 30,457 48,710 29,317
Contractual and other expenses 1,146,062 $ 413,499 234,013 179,486 353,948
Benefits 375,037 $ 156,265 130,207 26,058 151,334
2,850,425 1,121,859 803,923 317,936 988,212
Transmission/Distribution
Personnel services 2,531,584 3 1,050,846 1,002,703 48,143 867,760
Equipment 745,000 § 208,626 7,069 201,557 36,369
Contractual and other expenses 1,628,765 § 587,658 529,554 58,104 388,487
Benefits 849,238 $ 353,849 354,017 (168) 316,353
5,754,587 2,200,980 1,893,343 307,637 1,608,969
Sewer Services
Personnel services 825,134 $ 342,508 243,329 99,179 292,086
Equipment 589,000 $ 212,511 - 212,511 26,750
Contractual and other expenses 1,714,370 § 618,545 42,796 575,749 170,899
Benefits 196,956 § 82,065 72,080 9,985 57,175
3,325,460 1,255,629 358,205 897,424 546,910
Pumping Stations
Personnel services 149,790 §$ 62,177 30,771 31,406 68,059
Equipment 25,000 $ 8,333 4,489 3,844 2,082
Contractual and other expenses 400,609 $ 122,386 57,321 65,065 50,936
Benefits 37,757 § 15,732 10,150 5,582 26,204
613,156 208,628 102,731 105,897 147,281
Taxes Paid to Municipalities 2,112,359 § 600,000 558,282 41,718 558,787
County Sewer Contract 6,177,000 % 3,078,617 3,081,152 (2,535) 3,050,782
Contingencies, Insurance and Other 4,575,643 $ 1,238,733 691,406 547,327 590,093
TOTALS 28,456,200 $ 10,954,123 8,469,219 $ 2,484,904 8,416,950
EXPENSE SUMMARY: 2016 2015 Change
Personal Services 2,352,084 2,288,742 63,342
Equipment 42,760 95,493 {52,733)
Contractual and other expenses 952,878 1,065,558 (112,680)
Benefits 790,657 767,495 23,162
Other 4,330,840 4,199,662 131,178
8,469,219 8,416,950 52,269
Percent Increase/Decrease over 2015 0.6%
Percent under Budget 22.68%
Personal Services under Budget -14.17%



ALBANY WATER BOARD

ALBANY MUNICIPAL WATER AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL PROJECT COSTS
May 31, 2016

Actual Expenditures to Date

1995 $ 3,459,286
1996 3,148,713
1997 2,977,569
1998 2,059,812
1999 2,696,065
2000 1,771,829
2001 2,437,338
2002 3,384,049
2003 3,845,848
2004 5,673,622
2005 2,389,244
2006 1,575,740
2007 459,599
2008 1,230,331
2009 1,807,010
2010 1,108,164
2011 734,443
2012 2,266,553
2013 2,059,475
2014 1,832,084
2015 2,076,594

$ 48,993,267

Comparative Expenditures

[ 2015 —memmmemeememacnnanes) ] 2016

January $ - January $ -

February 77,235 February

March 33,828 March 423,060

April 84,334 April 72,924

May 86,474 May 94,213

June 17,174 June

July 161,417 July

August 59,130 August

September 208,826 September

October 373,623 October

November 44,554 November

December 929,999 December -
$ 2,076,594 $ 590,197
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MEMORANDUM
DEPARTMENT OF WATER & WATER SUPPLY

To: Albany Water Board Members
From: Joseph E. Coffey, Jr., P.E., Commissioner
Date: June 21, 2016

Re:  Safety Consultant Award

Requests for Proposals for a Safety Consultant to the Albany Water Board were issued
June 8. The RFP was published on the City web site and were due Friday June 17",

Two proposals were received:

Arcadis of New York, Inc., submitted a proposal that listed three candidates for AWB
consideration. The billing rates for the three candidates were: $95/hour, $125/hour and
$135/hour, all based on a minimum commitment of 25 hours per week for the first 12
months. Arcadis proposed to add $10/hour for mileage to each of the billing rates.

Denise Delaney, RSP (Registered Safety Professional) submitted a proposal with a billing
rate of $50/hour, inclusive of mileage. Denise currently provides safety consultant
services for Keller Construction.

Based on the proposals submitted and a review of the candidates’ background and
experience, we recommend the award to, and execution of an Agreement with, Denise
Delaney as Safety Consultant to the Albany Water Board, at a billing rate of $50/hour.
The Agreement shall be for a period of one year with the potential for two one-year
extensions.
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CITY OF ALBANY
DEPARTMENT OF WATER & WATER SUPPLY
10 N. ENTERPRISE DRIVE
ALBANY, NEW YORK 12204
TELEPHONE (518) 434-5300
KATHY M. SHEEHAN FAX (518) 434-5332 JosepH E. COFFEY JR., P.E
MAYOR COMMISSIONER

EXCAVATION POLICY

It is the official policy of the City of Albany Department of Water and Water Supply that restoration
or repair of any special landscaping, steps or other structures on or within the City of Albany right-
of-way or easement shall be the responsibility of the property owner. It is the property owner’s
responsibility, at their expense, to maintain or replace all structures altered or removed due to an
excavation by the City of Albany Water Department.

Any walkways and driveways damaged or removed will be replaced by the Department using
standard City of Albany restoration materials only. Such materials include concrete, asphalt and red
brick. Any custom landscaping such as special concrete, slate, retaining walls, etc. will be the
responsibility of the property owner, and the work to be performed with such materials by the
property owner or a contractor hired by the property owner will be done solely at the property
owner’s expense. All lawn area restorations will be restored by the Department with standard City
of Albany supplied topsoil and seeds only. It is the responsibility of the property owner to water and
maintain the lawn after restoration is complete.

The repair work does not impose liability upon the City or its agents and they shall be held harmless
from any claims related to the repair work.

As stated in Albany City Code Section 42-118 and Section 299-16, it is the responsibility of the
property owner to maintain the water service and sewer lateral from the city-owned water and
sewer mains to their point of entry into the property. However, as a courtesy, under the current
practice, the City of Albany will repair the portion of the water service from the City main to — but
not including — the curb stop. The property owner is responsible for the repair of the remainder of
the service line from the curb stop, including the curb box, to the point of entry into the structure.
Depending upon time and available resources — and solely at the discretion of the Department — the
City may agree to make repairs, once a consent form has been properly executed, and will bill the
property owner for time and materials. This only applies to the water service. The property owner is
still fully responsible for the entire sewer lateral from the city-owned sewer main to its point of
entry into the property.

Work performed by the City of Albany Department of Water and Water Supply does not alter any
responsibility of the property owner in any manner with respect to future claims.

The Commissioner, or his designee, shall have the discretion to require installation of a new water
service, from the water main to the curb stop, if the old service line has been determined to be
lead, and has been disconnected from the water main.

Adopted by the Albany Water Board by Resolution 16-32, dated June 27, 2016



CLARK DAVIS

ENGNEERING L SURVEVING

CHANGE ORDER 03

Ganem Contracting Corp. Date:

Ushers 9 Park — Route 9

Owner:

May 25, 2016

City of Albany

Department of Water and Water Supply

PO Box 1349

Project name:

Clifton Park, NY 12065

Change order number:

Reason for Change:

Feura Bush Filtration Plant
Masonry Repairs and Roofing

03

Waterproof coating protection of interior

spaces and new construction

You are directed to make the following changes in this contract:

Contract Add:
Waterproof coating over maintenance office roof: 100 SF x $28.98/SF
Waterproof coating over PRV concrete structure: 170 SF x $15.65/SF

Extension to completion date for backordered stair coating (90 days)

The original contract sum was:

Net amount of previous change orders ($23,200 - $15,000 allowance):
Total original contract amount plus or minus net previous change orders:
Total amount of this change order:

The new contract amount including this change order will be:

The contract time will be changed by the following number of days:

The date of completion as of the date of this change order is:

Owner:
City of Albany

Contractor:
Ganem Contracting Corp.

$2,898
$2,661

$0

Total Add: $5,559

$972,000.00
$8,200
$980,200.00
+$5,559
$985,759.00
( 60) Days

June 30, 2016

Department of Water and Water Supply

= S Y

Signature Date  Signature

RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS CAPITAL DISTRICT-CCRPORATE OFFICE FINGER LAKES OFFICE

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 257 Ushers Read 4592 Jurdan Read, PO Box 21/
winy ryanbiggs com Clifton Pagk, HY 12065 Skaneatales Falls, MY 13152
nio@ryanbigus comn p 518 406.5506 P315 6854732

Date

HUDSON YALLEY OFFICE
20 Snaker Read, PO Box 730
New Lebanon, NY 12125

n 513 794.3613



RYAN BIGGS
CLARK DAVIS

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING

May 25, 2016

Mr. Neil O'Connor

City of Albany

Department of Water & Water Supply
10 North Enterprise Drive

Albany, New York 12204

Re: Feura Bush Filtration Plant
Masonry Repairs and Roofing

Ryan-Biggs Proposal Project 10833

Dear Neil:

Attached please find revised proposed Change Order 3 for the above referenced project. The
scope of the change order items include adding waterproof coatings to the maintenance office
concrete deck roof and PRV structure concrete roof (constructed under earlier contract). The
same subcontractor that is installing the stair coating under the current contract would do these
additional areas at the same time. The work includes installing a waterproof coating and wood
blocking in both areas. The total cost of the work is $5,559.

We have reviewed the scope of work and costs. In our opinion, the cost is reasonable and we

recommend approving the proposed change order.

Please call me if you have questions.
Sincerely,

RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, P.C.

F1cd

Jack Healy, P.E.
Principal

10833/CA/CO.03rev

RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS CAPITAL DISTRICT-CORPORATE OFFICE
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 257 Ushers Road
www ryanbiggs com Clifton Park. NY 12065

nfo@ryanbiggs.com p 518 406 5506

FINGER LAKES OFFICE

4592 Jordan Road. PO Box 217
Skaneateles Falls NY 13153

p 315 685.4732

HUDSON VALLEY OFFICE
20 Shaker Road PO Box 730
New Lebanon NY 12125

p 518 794.8613



contracting corporation
restoring history

Thursday, April 28, 2016

Attention: Stacey Thomas
Ryan Biggs / Clark Davis
Engineering & Surveying
257 Ushers Road

Clifton Park, NY 12065

Re: Feura Bush / RBC 10833 / Coating Extras
Dear Stacey,
The following are the proposed coating extras:
Maintenance Office Coating per Finger Lakes Waterproofing attached proposal:
1. Finger Lakes quote $2,270.00 +.05% G.C. mark-up of $113.00 equaling $2,383.00
2. Prep work of installing wood blocking by Ganem Contracting of 6 manhours @ 67.50 per
manhour equaling $405.00 + 15% mark-up of 60.00 equaling $465.00

3. Wood blocking totaling $50.00

Total change order $2,898.00

Vented Concrete Pad per Finger Lakes Waterproofing attached proposal:

1. Finger Lakes quote of $2,320.00 + 5% G.C. mark-up of $116.00 equaling $2,436.00

2. Prep work of installing wood blocking by Ganem Contracting of 2 manhours @ 67.50 per
manhour equaling $135.00 + 15% mark-up of 20.00 equaling $155.00

3. Wood blocking totaling $20.00

Total change order $2,661.00

Sincerely,

-

Peter Ganem
President

6 A0y Yred 6 SIOYS()

S90T1 JOX MaN Sred UOHID 6vET X0d "'O'd

TF6L - LL8 (81S)

QKO8 - £48 (81€) xof




Finger Lakes Waterproofing

P.O. Box 667, Seneca Falls, New York 13148 » Phone 315-568-6938 Fax 315-568-5734 » fiwtrproof@verizon.net

April 1, 2016

Peter Ganem

Ganem Contracting Corporation
2023 U.S.Rt. 9

Round Lake, NY 12151

Re: Feura Bush Filtration Plant Deck Coating
Dear Peter:

Thank you for the opportunity to be involved in this project. Per your request please note the
following quotations.

Lower Front Steps

Supply and install an epoxy based concrete overlay with a urethane top coat (o the lower steps at
the above referenced site. Installation includes a face ground and/or pressure washed surface
preparation, a two-part urethane cove scalant to all vertical to horizontal interfaces, silica sand
loaded MasterSeal 350 epoxy overlay @ 50SF/gallon, and a MasterSeal TC225 top coat, as a
lock coat (@ 80SI/gallon. Silica sand will be applied @ % 1b/SF to the epoxy overlay to cnsure a
non-skid surface. Any existing sealant will be removed and replaced and cracks greater than 1/16
of an inch wide will be routed and sealed with a two-part urethane scalant prior to the epoxy
overlay installation.

The price to do this Work is ... $7.990.00
Maintenance Office Coating

Supply and install MasterSeal 1500 Pedestrian System Deck Coating to the elevated concrete
slab over the maintenance office. Installation includes a face ground and/or pressure wash
surface preparation, urethane sealants, as needed, MasterSeal M200 base coat @ 60SF/gallon,
and a MasterSeal TC225 top coat (@ 80SF/ gallon with washed silica sand broadcast (@
10lbs/100SF. The deck coating will up turn at the pressure treated wood at the wall, supplied by
others.

The price to do this Work is ... e $2.270.00



Vented Concrete Pad

Supply and install an epoxy based concrete overlay with a urethane top coat to the vented
concrete pad. Installation includes a face ground and/or pressure wash surface preparation, a two
part urethane cove sealant to the perimeter of the existing vent, silica sand loaded MasterSeal
350 epoxy overlay @ 50SF/gallon, and a MasterSeal TC225 top coat as a lock coat @
80SF/gallon. The deck coating will turn op at the pressure treated wood, supplied by others.

The price to do this WOrK iS .....oviviiiri e $2,320.00
Pricing assumes all work to be completed during normal working hours and assumes no
premium overtime rates. No provisions to apply deck coatings during inclement weather are
included in this price and price includes no concrete restoration.

If you have any questions, please contact our office.

Sincerely,

Charles Swenson
Finger L.akes Waterproofing, Inc.



21 June 2016

Joseph E. Coffey, Jr. P.E.
Commissioner

City of Albany

Department of Water & Water Supply
10 North Enterprise Drive

Albany, New York 12204

Re: Task Order #1 - Proposal for Scope and Fee for work at Albany Water Board Facilities

Alcove Reservoir

Dear Mr. Coffey,

We have familiarized ourselves with the scope of work set forth in the RFP. We have also
visited all of the sites listed in the RFP and observed the existing conditions. Based upon the
variety of tasks involved and the alternatives available to you as to how to address each of
the various alternatives, we are recommending that these services be initiated with a
planning study that includes the following scope of work:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)
6)
7)
8)

Assemble available existing documentation including drawings, reports and summary
of prior work (we understand that there is very little such information available)
Tour each site; evaluate and document scope, quantities and alternative approaches
for each task, identify any special testing that may be required (eg cut tests or infrared
subsurface moisture detection on farm-house roof)

Conduct any special tests, including hazardous materials survey, testing and report.
Document findings.

Prepare a schedule of work items, alternative recommendations, priorities and
estimate of probable costs. This will include sketch details and / or outline
specification

Meet with client to review findings and define project scope to be developed
Prepare final report inclusive of budget and fee proposal

Final client review meeting

Finalize and distribute final report

Our Project team shall include;
ENVISION Architects;

Ted W. Mallin AIA - Principal-in-charge
Todd Cirillo AIA — Project Manager

Ryan-Biggs / Clark Davis Engineering & Surveying PC, Structural Engineers (WBE)

Jack Healy PE

Ambient Environmental Inc. — Hazardous Materials (WBE)

Joella Viscusi — Project Director

Nasco Construction Services Inc. — Cost consulting (WBE)



There is no mechanical or electrical work included in the project scope.
We propose to provide these services as follows:

ENVISION Architects: on a time card basis at hourly rates for an amount not to exceed
$17,000.

Ryan-Biggs / Clark-Davis: on a time card basis at hourly rates for an amount not to
exceed $11,000 (and in accordance with attached proposal.

Ambient Environmental Inc.: On a lump sum basis of $2,450, plus laboratory service
expenses, and as set forth in attached proposal

Nasco Construction Services, Inc.: On a basis not to exceed $3,000
We propose to provide these services, as stipulated, for an amount not to exceed $35,000.

This fee is exclusive of special testing that may be recommended subject to initial findings
from site investigations.

Normal reimbursable expenses related to automobile mileage ($.55 / mile) and document
reproduction shall be at value plus a 10% administrative charge. We do not anticipate these
expenses exceeding $1,500.

Joe, should you have any questions or concerns related to this proposal, please contact me at
your convenience. Thank you for this opportunity. We look forward to working with you in
the near future!

Very Truly Yours,
ENVISION Architects DPC

Ted W. Mallin AIA
Principal

Managing Punapals
Ted W Mallin
Michael Poosl

Design Counsel
Sandra M Baptie
Bemanun Mendel

Associates

Daria Mallin
Damaon Hern
Michael 1 Naylor

52 James Street
Albany New York
12207

518 462 1848 T
918462 2529 °F
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June 20, 2016

Mr. Ted Mallin
Envision Architects
52 James Street
Albany, NY 12207

Re: Albany Water Board Facilities at Alcove Reservoir
Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis Proposal P10310

Dear Ted:

We are pleased to submit this proposal for limited professional services to be performed for
structural evaluations for several buildings at the Alcove Reservoir that supplies the City of
Albany water system. This proposal is based upon the request for proposal dated June 6, 2016,
photographs provided by your office, and conversations with you.

Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis Engineering & Surveying, P.C., (Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis) and
Envision Architects (Client) agree as set forth below.

A. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of services provided by Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis will be to:

1.

Review specifications and drawings of original structures and previous reports or other
related documents, if available. Documents to be provided by Client. The following
structures are included:

a. Two wood framed barns and the “corn crib” structure

b. Kline Stone House

c. Alcove Main Office Farmhouse

d. Three gatehouses

Make interior and exterior observations and take measurements of existing conditions
as required for our work. This includes a combination of observations from the ground
and inside the structure. The observations will be limited to structural items that are
readily accessible. No removal of existing finishes are anticipated.

Client will coordinate access to building interiors to allow observations to be made

Perform non-destructive testing to assist with our investigations. Ryan Biggs | Clark
Davis will utilize our testing equipment (no rental charges will apply). For this
investigation, we anticipate the use of a resistograph (resistance driller for wood) and a
moisture meter

Perform structural analysis on selected structural members. The analysis will be
limited to members that are suspected of being overstressed or have deteriorated

RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS APITAL DISTRI PORATE CF FINGER LAKES OFFICE HUDSON VA LEY O-HICE
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 7 Ushars Foart 4592 Jordan Road PO Bex . 20 Shaker Road PO Box 77
My 1yanbiggs com flon Park N Srangateles Falls Ny 137 New Lebanon NY 17129
nfrar,anb gis on 106 39 p 15685473, n 518764 8013



7.

8.

conditions. The analysis will be based upon the 2015 International Existing Building
Code (IEBC), as modified by the 2016 NYS Uniform Code Supplement.

Prepare a preliminary report of our findings and recommendations. In the report, we

will:

a. ldentify problems observed.

b. Recommend additional removals for areas displaying symptoms of possible
problems.

c. Develop a priority list of concept-level repair work to address problems observed.

d. Prepare an opinion of probable construction cost for repairs identified.

Meet with Client to review the preliminary report and Client's comments.

Issue a final report.

Provide a proposal for the Design Phase.

The following services are not included in Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis’ proposed fee. If
requested, Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis can be retained to provide additional scope

items.

1. Provide material testing services.

2. Design modifications to existing building, including the analysis and reinforcement of
existing members to resist seismic loads, increased wind loads, increased snow loads,
or drifted snow loads.

3. Perform a structural code review to determine structural upgrades needed for
Alterations or Change of Occupancy. The evaluation will be focused on the existing
conditions only and a change of use for the buildings is not anticipated.

4. Design repairs for the structural deficiencies found.

B. COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis will perform the listed services on an hourly basis with the
maximum fee not exceeding $11,000 plus the reimbursable expenses listed in C below.

C. COMPENSATION FOR EXPENSES

Reimbursable expenses incurred by Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis for the project are in addition
to the fee and shall include the following: printing, postage, shipping, courier services, and
travel mileage from our office.

1. Reimbursable expenses will be billed monthly for the actual cost of expenditures plus a
10 percent administrative fee.
2. Reimbursable expenses are estimated to be $100, but the amount invoiced may be
greater depending upon the costs incurred.
RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS Ryan 8igas | Clark Da s Procosal P1031
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING Page 2
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D. STANDARD HOURLY RATES

a. Ryan Biggs | Clark Davis' current rates are as follows:

Personnel Hourly Rates
Principal/Principal Consultant $225
Principal Associate 200
Senior Associate 175
Associate 160
Senior Engineer 140
Chief Surveyor 130
Professional Engineer 120
Design Engineer/Technician 100
Senior CADD 90
CADD 80
Non-Technical 55

b. After 6 months, the hourly rates may increase at the discretion of Ryan Biggs |
Clark Davis and may increase annually thereafter.

Thank you for your consideration for this proposal. If the scope and fee are acceptable to you,
please forward a contract.
Sincerely,

RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, P.C.

Jack C. Healy, P.E.
Principal

RYAN BIGGS | CLARK DAVIS
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING
Ve ryanbiggs com
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June 17,2016

Mr. Ted Mallin

Envision Architects

52 James Street

Albany, New York 12207
(518) 462-1848

RE: Hazardous Materials Pre-renovation Survey
Albany Water Board Properties
Albany County. NY
Ambient Proposal No. 2016-06-301

Dear Mr. Mallin:

Ambient Environmental, Inc. (Ambient) is pleased to submit our proposal for a pre-renovation
asbestos survey for the above listed facilities. The following paragraphs outline the project
understanding, project scope of work, unit costs, projects base fee estimates, and business term

PRQJECT SCOPE OF WORK

The project includes the following structures and the stated scope of renovations:

Alcove Main Office Farmhouse:
e Exterior siding. insulation
e Roof inspected
e Bathroom: floor tiles, paint
e Interior cosmetic: Paint walls floors
Klme Stone house:
e Needs full inspection to see to what extent it needs rehabilitation
Barns:
e Siding rchab
e Roof inspected
e Beams inspected
e Upper bam floor inspected
e Addition or modification for futurc indoor storage of tractors, ctc.
e Windows fixed, caulked, etc.
e Corn crib-cither fix or demolish

oA e Albanv s NY 12205 1e2 0 Pl
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June 17. 2016 Ambient Environmental, Inc.
Envision Architects - Albany Water Board Page 2
Ambient Proposal No. 2016-06-301

Alcove and Basic Reservoir Gatchouses (Thrce Total):
e Qutters
e Slate roof

Ambient will complete the following tasks. All activities will be provided by certified
professionals with demonstrated experience within the required disciplines.

Asbestos Sampling — After completion of a review of the site conditions and historical documents
including bulk sampling previously completed, Ambient shall perform additional bulk asbestos
sampling and analysis as required. A team of NYS Certified and AHERA trained Asbestos
Inspectors shall conduct the sampling activities. Ambient personnel shall use the mecans
necessary, up to and including destructive methods, to access suspect asbestos-containing
materials in the path of the roof replacement.

Roof Sampling and Patching - Ambient is not a roofing contractor and will not be responsible for
lcaks, water damage, or any other complications resulting from the sampling of roof materials.
Only a qualified, certified roofer may appropriately patch roofs. Ambient shall not be
responsible for voiding of any roof warranties should they exist. 1f the owner would like a
qualified roofer to patch test locations the owner may hire one directly or one can be
contracted by Ambient at cost plus 10%.

PCB Inspection - Ambient shall perform sampling of suspect PCB-containing caulk. The caulk
shall be analyzed for the presence of Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs). No other materials will
be sampled for PCBs as part of this proposal as this has not been authorized by the client

Lead Based Paint Inspection - Ambient shall perform lead-based paint testing in accordance with
24 CFR Part 35 - HUD Guideline for the Evaluation and Control of Lead Based Paint Hazards in
Housing. Ambient shall conduct the testing using an RMD LPA-1 XRF machine. This unit has
no inconclusive range.

Sample Analysis - Samples obtained in the field will be analyzed by an accredited laboratory
under the Environmental Laboratory Approval Program (ELAP) admimistered by the New York
State Department of Health. as appropriate for the type of sample analysis.

Report Preparation — At the completion of the testing services, Ambient shall provide a report
that summarizes the location of confirmed asbestos material and lead-based paint, and PCBs
along with drawings depicting the asbestos material and sample locations at the site. The report
will also include the laboratory analysis report and all supporting documents.



June 17, 2016 Ambient Environmental, Inc.
Fnvision Architects - Albany Water Board Page 3
Ambient Proposal No 2016-06-301

PROJECT ESTIMATE

Ambient has prepared the following cost estimate for this project. All work will be completed in
the timeframes stipulated by the Client.

LABORATORY ANALYTICAL SERVICES

Asbestos Bulk Sample Analysis, PLM Friable

Five day turnaround, per Sample............cccocoooiiiiiiiiiieee e $10.00
Asbestos Bulk Sample Analysis, PLM Non Friable Organically Bound Material

Five day turnaround, per sample.........c...ooooioviiiiiiiioceee e $22.00
Asbestos Bulk Sample Analysis, TEM Confirmation

Five day turnaround, per Sample..........o.ooooiiiiiiiie e $40.00
PCB Samples, Five day turnaround, per sample......................coooii . e e e SR 82 §70.00

Sample Analysis fees do not include off hours, weekends, or holiday lab fees. These services will
be provided as needed and pricing will be communicated at the time of service.

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES
LExpensces such as certified roofer or lifts required to complete work ..., SCost plus 10%
PROJECT ESTIMATE

Asbestos Inspection and Reporting, LUMP SUM ........ooviiiiinccncce s $2,450.00*
*Does not include the cost of a roofer to patch sample locations. Also does not include sample
analysis. Client will be invoiced for actual samples collected and analyzed.

PROJECT TEAM

Ambient will staff this project from our team of experienced environmental professionals. Joella
Viscusi will direct the project. Ms. Viscusi will be responsible for development of the
specification and all project deliverables. Ambient’s network of health and safety professionals
allows for both a quality and cost effective project.



June 17.2016 Ambient Environmental, Inc.
Envision Architects -~ Albany Water Board Page 4
Ambient Proposal No 2016-06-301

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Ambient is prepared to begin the project scope of work upon written receipt of authorization to
proceed from Envision Architects. It is anticipated that the project can be scheduled at a
mutually agreed upon time frame.

BUSINESS TERMS
Ambient’s Client Service Agreement. applies to this proposal and any subsequent contracts.
This Agreement is attached. If this proposal is acceptable to you, please authorize Ambient to

procecd with the work described by signing and returning one copy of the Agreement.

Very truly yours,

Ambient Environmental, Inc.

ém@ Videras

Joella M. Viscusi
President

Enclosure



ALBANY MUNICIPAL WATER FINANCE AUTHORITY

10 NORTH ENTERPRISE DRIVE

ALBANY, NEW YORK 12204
(518) 434-5300

Michael J. Hall, Esq., Chairman
Gary R. Overdorf, Secretary

Julia Cannizzaro, Treasurer
Gardner Lerner, Member

Rev. Dr. Edward B. Smart, Member

Legal Notice
ALBANY MUNICIPAL WATER FINANCE AUTHORITY

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a public hearing will be held pursuant to Section
1115-h of the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority Act on Monday, July 25, 2016, at
10:00 A.M., in the Conference Room located at the offices of the Albany Municipal Water
Finance Authority located at 10 North Enterprise Drive, Albany, New York, concerning the
amendment of the provisions of the Financing Agreement by and among the City of Albany,
the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority and the Albany Water Board to provide for the
undertaking of certain capital projects. Copies of drafts of the amendments to the Financing
Agreement, including the descriptions of the capital projects, are available for inspection
during regular business hours at the office of the Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority,
10 North Enterprise Drive, Albany, New York.

Michael Hall, Chairman
Albany Municipal Water Finance Authority
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A ARCADIS s+
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Albany Water Board
Arcadis Engineering Report
Date: June 24, 2016

Upcoming LTCP Projects\Dates

Big “C” Control Facility — The project was awarded to the Albany Pool Joint Venture
Team. Completed Preliminary Design Report is due 8/1/2016. Project is underway.
Performance of a Codes and Local Law Review, & Green Infrastructure Technical
Design Guidance - CDRPC awarded a contract to Barton & Loguidice. Local Law
completion date is 8/1/2016, Technical Design Guidance by 8/1/2017.

Marietta Place Stormwater Storage Facility — Awarded to Barton & Loguidice.
Completed plans and specifications due by 10/1/2016.

Green Infrastructure Banking System Feasibility Assessment. Awarded to Arcadis.
Work must be completed by 8/1/2017.

Arcadis Projects

Green Infrastructure Banking System Feasibility Assessment

Feura Bush Filtration Plant — (NYSERDA FlexTech Grant) — Project will include energy
evaluation at the Feura Bush filtration plant (blowers, lighting, windows\doors). The
project also includes some condition assessment and treatment system evaluation.
CIP Projects — Sewer condition assessment, erosion problems, Loudonville Reservoir
Basin C wall cap replacement.

Geographic Information System (GIS) Data Integration (Patroon Creek Sewershed) -
Project included digitizing about 150 sewer system drawings to GIS.

Asset Management Program — First workshop is scheduled for July 15. Some
components will include establishing levels of service, key performance indicators, and
risk.

Long Term Control Plan Schedule of Compliance — Monitoring deadlines and costs



